
 

Historic Preservation Commission  

 
Members: 
Dr. Stephen Gibson – Chairperson 
Ms. Suzanne Wright – Vice Chairperson 
Mr. Tim Hoffman – Secretary 
Mr. Larry Jackson 
Mr. Chris Myers 
Dr. Michael Garrett 
Vacant Seat 
Councilwoman Laurie Marchini 
Staff Liaison: Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 
 

  
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Historic Preservation Commission 

Cumberland City Hall, Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    October 14, 2020 

TIME:     4:00 PM 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Review of the meeting minutes from the September 9, 2020 Historic Preservation Commission 

meeting 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS  

2. 501 Washington Street - Request to Change/Amend COA 858 in order to replace a fence and 

make existing wall repairs, where needed, Jim Hilgeman, applicant 

3. 218 Washington Street  -Request to reconstruct failing wall in rear yard visible from Spruce Place 

– Suzanne Trussell, applicant on behalf of the Allegany County Historical Society 

4. 11-15 South Liberty Street - Request to create Trompe l'Oeil murals on infilled window openings, 

Chris Myers, applicant 

OTHER BUSINESS 

5. Updates from staff and from the Chairperson 

6. New Meeting Date November 18, 2020 - Changed from November 11, 2020 due to the holiday 

7. Monthly report of all Certificates of Appropriateness that were reviewed by staff: 49 Baltimore 

Street – Request by the Allegany Arts Council to repaint the doors on the rear façade. 29 

Baltimore Street – Request to change the logo/name on the existing signs using the same 

material,500 Washington Street – Request to change/amend COA853 in order to make in-kind 

repairs to the cedar shakes and to repaint previously painted surfaces,224 Washington Street – 

COA20-000007 – In-kind replacement of porch roof, porch components, and repainting 



ADJOURNMENT  

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact the Department of Community Development at  

(301) 759-6431 or (301) 759-6442. 

Applicants or their appointed representatives must be present at the meeting for a review to take place. Please 

remember to turn off or silence all electronic devices prior to entering the meeting. 



File Attachments for Item:

 Review of the meeting minutes from the September 9, 2020 Historic Preservation Commission meeting



 

 

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

October 14, 2020 

Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission held its regular meeting on 

Wednesday, September 9, 2020 at 4:00 p.m., via a virtual zoom meeting.  Members 

present were Chairperson, Dr. Stephen Gibson, Mr. Larry Jackson, Dr. Michael T. 

Garrett, Mr. Chris Myers, Ms. Suzanne Wright, Mr. Tim Hoffman, and Councilwoman 

Lauri Marchini. 

 Others in attendance were Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation 

Coordinator, Debbie Helmstetter, Code Technician, Mr. Gorman Getty, Mr. Steve 

Chaney, Mr. Mike Fetchero and Ms. Sandi Saville.  

  Chairperson, Dr. Stephen Gibson, called the meeting to order.  He read the 

following statement into the record: “The Cumberland Historic Preservation 

Commission exists pursuant to Section 11 of the City of Cumberland Municipal Zoning 

Ordinance.  Members are appointed by the Mayor and City Council and shall possess 

a demonstrated special knowledge or professional or academic training in such fields 

as history, architecture, architectural history, planning, archeology, anthropology, 

curation, conservation, landscape architecture, historic preservation, urban design 

or related disciplines.  The Commission strives to enhance quality of life by 

safeguarding the historical and cultural heritage of Cumberland.  Preservation is 

shown to strengthen the local economy, stabilize and improve property values, and 

foster civic beauty.  The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission operates 

pursuant to State of Maryland 1977 Open Meetings Act and therefore no pending 

applications shall be discussed between or amongst Commissioners outside the public 

hearing to determine the disposition of the application.” 

  Chairperson Dr. Stephen Gibson introduced the Commission members present 

and staff.   

  

 



2 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  Minutes for August 10, 2020 were approved as written.  Mr. Chris Myers 

made the motion to approve the minutes as written and Dr. Michael Garrett 

seconded the motion; all members were in favor, motion was approved. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 There were no public comments.  

   

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS 

1. COA 842 Change/Amendment Request – 3 Pershing Street – Allegany 

Museum – Applicant Mike Fetchero, representing the Allegany Museum,  

requested a change/amendment to the original Certificate of 

Appropriateness in order to seek approval for work that had not been 

completed without review by the Historic Preservation Commission. This 

included the construction of a wooden enclosure and new concrete pad 

around the HVAC unit, reconstruction of the exterior stairs, 

reconstruction of the accessible ramp, and replacement of the soffit on 

the rear addition using Hardie Reveal cement board.   
 
Discussion focused on the chiller and the wooden screen that was 

constructed around the chiller.  The Maryland Historical Trust has 

reviewed the project since they hold a preservation easement on the 

property. Mr. Fetchero provided background information about the 

project. Mr.  Fetchero said the fence will be painted to match the 

surrounding masonry once the treated wood could be painted.   
 

Ms. Suzanne Wright made a motion to table a decision on the 
application until the Maryland Historical Trust completes their review, 
particularly since the Maryland Historical Trust is the body that holds 
the easement on the property.  Mr. Chris Myers seconded the motion; 
all members were in favor. Motion approved.   
    

2. COA20-000003 Change/Amendment Request– 23 Washington Street, 

applicant Mr. Gorman Getty requested a change/amendment to the original 

review.  In addition to the previously approved removal of the existing 

brick for the purpose of leveling the surface underneath the sidewalk, 



3 
 

additional work will include reducing the width of the sidewalk to seven 

feet, the installation of concrete pavers, measuring 3.5” x 11.5”, separating 

the sidewalk from the grass plot between the sidewalk and the curb, and 

installing a new grass plot between the curb and the new pavers.  No mortar 

will be utilized in the installation.  The sidewalk has sunk and is hazardous 

to people walking up and down the street.  The original brick will be 

reinstalled for the newly leveled sidewalk.  Mr. Chris Myers made the 
motion to approve the change/amendment to COA20-000003 for 23 
Washington Street pursuant to Guideline 1 Chapter 5 page 65, Guideline 
2 Chapter 5 page 66 and Guideline 65 Chapter 5 page 144. Dr. Michael 
Garrett second the motion, all members were in favor; motion 
approved. 
 

3. COA20-000004 – 27 North Centre Street – Applicant Sandi Saville 

requested to replace the front existing window units, two years ago one of 

those windows blew out into her bedroom. The glass did not break, but the 

frame does not have the ability to put it up and down is inoperable.  She 

had the window frames put back in.  She requested to replace the windows 

with units that almost exactly alike, same size, same color with triple pane 

glass.   Ms. Suzanne Wright made a motion to approve the application, 
as submitted, noting that the existing windows are not historic. She 
noted that the proposed changes are consistent with the Guidelines 
Guideline 23 page 82 - Design Guidelines for windows.  Mr. Tim 
Hoffman seconded the motion.  All voting members were in favor (Mr. 
Jackson had abstained) therefore the request was approved. 
 

TAX INCENTIVE APPLICATION REVIEW 

1.  City of Cumberland’s Local Tax Credit Part 1 Review – Town Center 

Development Group, LLC presented Part 1 of the local historic district tax 

incentive application for review for 107-109 Baltimore Street – Applicant 

Steve Chaney, Town Center Development Group, LLC provided an overview 

of the project, focusing mainly on the interior.  Chaney stated there will 

be an apartment on the second and third floors.  No structural changes 

inside will affect any changes on the exterior.  

 

Mr. Larry Jackson, a member of the HPC and a partner in Town Center 

Development Group, owner of the property under review, advised that he 

would be abstain from the review. 



4 
 

 

Following discussion among staff and members of the Historic Preservation 

Commission about the Part 1 review process and references to the 

Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabiliation, Ms. Suzanne 

Wright made a motion to approve Part one of the tax credit application 

since it was consistent with the Preservation Guidelines and preservation 

standards. Mr. Myers seconded the motion 

  

Ms. Suzanne Wright has studied the Tax Incentive Application Review 
(City of Cumberland’s Historic Preservation Tax Program Construction 
Scope Part I Review) the property is at 107-109 Baltimore Street, it 
individually contributes to the period of significance in the Historic 
contents of the Canal Place Preservation District and we find the 
application consistence with Guidelines and Preservation Standards.  
Mr. Chris Myers seconds the motion.  Vote was 5-0 for the motion; 
motion approved. 

       

 

 

OTHER BUSINESS/STAFF UPDATES 

1.  On the Friday before the meeting, the City announced a new façade 

program for the Canal Place Preservation District that was launched 

through the City’s Website and Facebook.   It is for a maximum of 

$5,000.00 matching grant for façade improvements for residential owner 

occupied properties within the Canal Place Preservation District.  

Applications will be due September 30, 2020.   

 

2.  Ms. McKenney said she sent around a link for the National Trust Historic 

Preservation Conference that will be held virtually this year due to the 

pandemic and offered to register any member of the HPC who wished to 

participate.  The conference will be held the last week of October 27-30th 

this year. 

 

3. Ms. McKenney advised that she had received a notice from the National 

Trust for Historic Preservation that a  Diversity Scholarship was available 

for the Saving Places Conference.   



5 
 

 

REVIEW OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO THE RULES AND PROCEDURES 

 Ms. McKenney provided an overview of edits that she prepared to the Rules 

of Procedure to help address several new needs that have arisen due to pandemic 

with the virtual meeting format as well as to provide for including digital signatures 

from the HPC officers in the new permit platform being used by the Department of 

Community Development, called Citizenserve. 

 

 Mr. Chris Myers made a motion to adopt the changes as presented by 
Kathy McKenney.  Dr. Michael Garrett seconded the motion.  The motion was 
unanimously approved. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

1.  23 Washington Street – Removal of bricks. 

 

 Kathy McKenney stated that there was a need to reschedule the November 

meeting since it would fall on Veterans Day.  She noted that she would contact 

everyone to check for the best alternative date. 

 

 An audio of tonight’s meeting is available upon request. 

 

 

ADJOURMENT 

  Mr. Tim Hoffman made the motion to adjourn and Mr. Larry Jackson seconded 

the motion.  All members were in favor; motion approved. 

 

       Respectfully, 

              

        ___________________________________ 

       Mr. Tim Hoffman, Secretary 

       October 14, 2020 



File Attachments for Item:

2. 501 Washington Street - Request to Change/Amend COA 858 in order to replace a fence and make 

existing wall repairs, where needed, Jim Hilgeman, applicant



 

  
 
 

 
EXISTING CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
REQUEST FOR CHANGE/AMENDMENT 
 

 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness #: 858 
 
Property Owner: James and Carolyn Hilgeman 
 
Original Approval Date: 11/21/18 
 
Project Address: 501 Washington Street 
 
Property Number:  06-005969 
 
Change/Amendment Review Date: October 14, 2020 
 
 
 
The request for a change/amendment to the original review includes the following scope of work:  the repair of the 
existing wall in order to correct settling issues.  An appropriate mortar mix to match the existing will be utilized for the 
repairs.  Once the wall is repaired, the existing fence, which is deteriorated, will be replaced with a custom-made 
wood fence fabricated in the style shown on the eleventh page of the application packet (not including the gate that is 
shown on the image).  The height will be varied in order to compensate for the changes in grade to the rear of the 
property.  Once installed, the surface will be stained with Sherwin Williams Flagstone Exterior Color # 3023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The request was:      DENIED 
       APPROVED AS SUBMITTED 

 APPROVED, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS 

 
APPROVED with the following conditions:       
 
 
 
Signed: 
 
 
____________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
HPC Chair HPC Secretary 
 
 
NOTE: Please note that the approval listed above only constitutes the approval of the Historic Preservation 
Commission.  You must still ensure that all other permits associated with this project, if required, have been 
applied for and approved by the Building and Zoning Officer.   

  



 

Existing Conditions 

 



 



 

 



 



 

 

  



Placement 

 

 



 

  



 

  



 



  

Proposed Fence Design 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

501 Washington Street 

Request for Change/Amend 

Contact:  Dr. James Hilgeman 

 

 

An application for a Certificate of Appropriateness was approved administratively on November 

21, 2018 (COA#858) the removal of a hazardous tree.  The removal was undertaken by the City 

of Cumberland. A Change/Amendment was approved on June 12, 2019 for the after the fact 

removal of a garage and for a subsequent construction of a new retaining wall at the site of the 

garage.  The house is a contributing structure to the Canal Place Preservation District.  

 

A second Change/Amendment review related to COA #858 has been requested to approve the 

replacement of the existing fence, which has deteriorated.  The fence is located along Allegany 

Street and is situated on top of the older stone wall as well as the newer wall that was approved 

in 2019.  The property owner intends to have a custom-made wood fence fabricated in the style 

shown on the eleventh page of the application packet (not including the gate that is shown on the 

image).  The height will be varied in order to compensate for the changes in grade to the rear of 

the property.  Once installed, the surface will be stained with Sherwin Williams Flagstone 

Exterior Color # 3023.  

 

Prior to installing the new fence, the existing wall is showing issues with settlement, as well as 

shifting, and will require repair.  The owner is working with a contractor who intends to utilize 

an appropriate mortar mix to address this repair. 

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 8: 

Repointing Historic Masonry (Chapter 5 Page 70); Guideline 62: Fences (Chapter 5 Page 

113); Guideline 63: Retaining Walls (Chapter 5 Page 114) 
 

 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

3. 218 Washington Street  -Request to reconstruct failing wall in rear yard visible from Spruce Place – 

Suzanne Trussell, applicant on behalf of the Allegany County Historical Society



 



 

 

  



 

 

 



























 



 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA#20-000008 

Business Name Gordon Roberts House 

Address 218 Washington Street 

Project Contact Suzanne Trussell 

 

 

 

 

Project Summary:  A Certificate of Appropriateness application has been received to address deteriorating conditions of the 

brick wall that runs parallel to Spruce Place, a public right of way.  As shown in the submitted photographs, the mortar and 

bricks are becoming loose around metal railings that have been secured within the construction, likely causing the railing to 

heave during the expansion and contraction process that occurs during the freeze/thaw seasonal changes.  According to the 

applicant, the wall was constructed in 1976.  The plaque on the wall states that the bricks were sourced from the Queen City 

Brewing Company.  Therefore, although the main structure is a contributing resource within the Canal Place Preservation 

District, the subject wall is a much later addition to the site.   

 

The Maryland Historical Trust holds a preservation easement on the property and, although an easement review has been 

submitted by the Allegany County Historical Society for this work, the review is not yet complete.  A copy of this application 

has been included with the supporting documents for the Certificate of Appropriateness beginning on the fourth page of 

this document.  The scope of work describes that the top three feet of the brick piers are to be removed.  The contractor will 

add a component to allow for proper expansion.  Although this is not detailed in the application, it is likely to include a 

backer rod or expansion sleeve.  The existing brick will be utilized in the reconstruction of the piers.   

 

The contractor has specified the use of Type O mortar for this project.  Although the wall was constructed in 1976, the 

contractor needs to select a mortar that is compatible with the composition of the older brick.  Type O mortar does make 

use of lime, typically found more predominantly in older masonry construction, as opposed to the more heavily used 

portland mortar ratios of the modern era.  Removing the mortar from the existing individual bricks will certainly pose a 

challenge.  Therefore, the applicant has noted that there are additional bricks stored on site which can be utilized if damage 

occurs that renders some bricks unusable.   

 

 

 

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 2: Repair Before Replace (Chapter 5 

Page 66); Guideline 8: Repointing Historic Masonry (Chapter 5 Page 70) 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

4. 11-15 South Liberty Street - Request to create Trompe l'Oeil murals on infilled window openings, 

Chris Myers, applicant



 

 

  



 

 

 

 

 

This request is for the treatment of seven brick in windows using a Trompe-l'oeil painted technique. The windows were 

removed and bricked in in the late 70s. Four of the windows face directly to the Merchants Alley sidewalk. Two on the 

lower floor and two on the second floor. The brickwork is not consistent with the existing brickwork and takes away 

from the appearance of the building. The other three windows are located at the rear of the property facing the parking 

lot, two on the second floor and one on the first floor.  This technique will add character and camouflage the newer 

brickwork so that it does not stand out against the historic brickwork. The frame and window components would be 

painted in Shade Green from the Sherwin-Williams historic exterior collection and is consistent with the previous COA 

for repainting the property in 2018.  In conjunction with the Allegheny Arts council Merchants Alley project the 3, first 

floor bricked in windows will be available for design and paint.  The remaining four windows on the second floor will be 

coordinated privately with this project coordinator due to insurance concerns and the elevation/heights of the project.  I 

thank you for your time  and consideration of this project. 

 

Chris Myers 

  



 

Existing Conditions: 







 

  



 

 



 

 

Conceptual Trompe L’oeil Designs 





 

 

 

  



 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA#20-000006 

Address 11-15 South Liberty Street 

Project Contact Chris Myers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Summary:  The applicant, working with the Allegany Arts Council, has requested to create Trompe l’Oeil 

paintings to encompass the spaces where brick infill has been installed in original window opening locations. The 

structure is a contributing structure within the Canal Place Preservation District.  There are seven former window 

openings that will feature this art that will essentially create a whimsical appearance of a window within each of 

these spaces.  An article from the Washington Post has been included with this application packet that explains a bit 

more about this technique.   

 

 

Instead of painting directly on the infill brick, the applicant proposes to utilize a similar method that was recently 

used by the Downtown Development Commission for the Welcome to Cumberland murals – painting the mural off-

site on a panel sized to the correct dimensions and then installing the panels at the appropriate locations (42 

Baltimore Street, 55 Baltimore Street, 151 Baltimore Street and 18 South Mechanic Street). 

 

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 3: Restore Significant Historic 

Features (Chapter 5 Page 67), Guideline 51: Murals and Signs as Art (Chapter 5 Page 104) 

 

  



 

  



 

  



 



 

  



 

 

 

 


	Top
	1.	September 9, 2020 Minutes
	HPC 9-9-20Minutes 

	2.	501 Washington Street – Jim Hilgeman – Request to Change/Amend COA 858
	501WashingtonStChangeAmend858

	3.	218 Washington Street – COA20-000008 - Gordon Roberts House
	218 WashingtonStCOA20-000008

	4.	11-15 South Liberty Street –COA20-000006
	15SLibertyStCOA20-000006

	5.	Staff/Chairperson Updates
	6.	November Meeting Schedule Change
	7.	Administrative Approvals Report
	Bottom

